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GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability. Its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited. Its ultimate holding company is Tian An China
Investments Company Limited (“Tian An”), a public
company incorporated in Hong Kong and which shares are

listed on the Stock Exchange.

On 15th May, 2001, the acquisition of a 60% interest in
Shanghai Allied Cement Company Limited (“Shanghai
SAC”) by the Group was completed and Shanghai SAC
became a jointly controlled entity of the Group. On 14th
March, 2002, as a result of the approval of the amendments
to the joint venture contract and joint venture articles of
Shanghai SAC by the relevant government regulatory
authority, Shanghai SAC became a subsidiary of the
Company.

Throughout the period from 15th May, 2001 to 13th March,
2002, in its consolidated financial statements, the Group
reported its interest in Shanghai SAC using the equity
method of accounting. With effect from 14th March 2002,
the results, assets and liabilities of Shanghai SAC are

consolidated into those of the Group.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries, jointly
controlled entities and associate are set out in notes 41, 17

and 18 respectively.
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HE-_TT_F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The current directors were appointed on 15th May, 2001

(date of the completion of the financial restructuring) or

after that date and they have used their best endeavour to

locate all the financial and business records of the Group.

However, as most of the former accounting personnel and

all former directors had left the Group on or before 15th

May, 2001, the directors have encountered the following

difficulties in preparing the consolidated financial

statements.

(a)

(b)

L BB AR AL (9 %A B 23 SHANGHAI ALLIED CEMENT LIMITED

The directors were unable to obtain sufficient
documentary evidence to satisfy themselves as to
whether the following amounts relating to the period
from 1st April, 2001 to 15th May, 2001 and included
in the consolidated income statement and the associated
disclosures in the notes to the financial statements for
the nine months ended 31st December, 2001 were fairly
stated:

—  Turnover of approximately HK$986,000

—  Cost of sales of approximately HK$1,149,000

— Administrative expenses of approximately
HK$412,000

The directors were unable to obtain sufficient
documentary evidence to satisfy themselves as to
whether the following amounts included in the
consolidated income statement and the associated
disclosures in the notes to the financial statements for
the nine months ended 31st December, 2001 were fairly

stated:

- Gain on deconsolidation of subsidiaries of
approximately HK$61,121,000;

—  Gain on debts waived on financial restructuring
of approximately HK$957,583,000;
— Loss on disposal of subsidiaries under financial

restructuring of approximately HK$98,000.
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2. REBBEREE 2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Continued)

(¢c) The directors were unable to represent as to the
completeness of recording of transactions entered into
by the Group for the period from 1st April, 2001 to
15th May, 2001. Accordingly, the directors were also
unable to represent as to the completeness of
identification and disclosure of related party
transactions for the period from 1st April, 2001 to 15th
May, 2001.

(d) The directors were unable to obtain sufficient
documentary evidence to satisfy themselves as to
whether trade and other payables of a subsidiary of
approximately HK$25,102,000 included in the
consolidated balance sheet at 31st December, 2001
were fairly stated. Accordingly, the directors are unable
to obtain sufficient documentary evidence to satisfy
themselves as to whether the gain on deconsolidation
of this subsidiary, which has been put into liquidation,
of approximately HK$27,838,000 included in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended 31st

December, 2002 is fairly stated.

Any adjustments arising from all the matters described
above would affect the net profit and cash flows of the
Group for the nine months ended 31st December, 2001.
Any adjustments arising from the matter described in (d)
above would affect the net assets of the Group at 31st
December, 2001 and the profit of the Group for the year
ended 31st December, 2002.

ADOPTION OF STATEMENTS OF STANDARD
ACCOUNTING PRACTICE

For the year ended 31st December, 2002, the Group has
adopted, for the first time, a number of new and revised
Statements of Standard Accounting Practice (“SSAPs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants, which
has resulted in the adoption of the following new and
revised accounting policies. The adoption of these standards
has resulted in the presentation of the statement of changes
in equity and a change in the format of presentation of the
cash flow statement but has had no material effect on the
results for the year ended or prior accounting periods.

Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required.
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HE-_TT_F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

ADOPTION OF STATEMENTS OF STANDARD
ACCOUNTING PRACTICE (Continued)

Foreign currencies

The revisions to SSAP 11 “Foreign Currency Translation”
have eliminated the choice of translating the income
statements of overseas subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities at the closing rate for the period, the
policy previously followed by the Group. They are now
required to be translated at an average rate. This change in
accounting policy has not had any material effect on the

results for the year ended or prior accounting periods.

Cash flow statement

Under SSAP 15 (Revised) “Cash Flow Statements”, cash
flows are classified under three headings — operating,
investing and financing, rather than the previous five
headings. Interest received and interest paid, which were
previously presented under a separate heading, are classified
as investing and financing cash flows respectively. Cash
flows arising from taxes on income are classified as
operating activities, unless they can be separately identified
with investing or financing activities. In addition, the
amounts presented for cash and cash equivalents have been
amended to exclude import loans that are financing in
nature. The re-definition of cash and cash equivalents has
resulted in a restatement of the comparative amounts shown

in the cash flow statement.

Employee benefits

SSAP 34 “Employee benefits” introduces measurement rules
for employee benefits, including retirement benefit plans.
Because the Group participates only in defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes, the adoption of SSAP 34 has

not had any material impact on the financial statements.
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ZE_F+-_A=T—HIEFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention. The financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. The principal accounting

policies adopted are as follows:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to the balance sheet date. The results of
subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year/period
are included in the consolidated income statement from the
effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of

disposal/loss of effective control, as appropriate.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of
the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of a subsidiary,
associate or jointly controlled entity at the date of

acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions is capitalised and amortised
on a straight line basis over its useful economic life.
Goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate or a
jointly controlled entity is included within the carrying
amount of the associate or jointly controlled entity.
Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is

presented separately in the balance sheet.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s

balance sheet at cost less any identified impairment loss.
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HE-_TT_F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Interests in jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements which involve the establishment
of a separate entity in which each venturer has an interest

are referred to as jointly controlled entities.

The Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities are
included in the consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s
share of the net assets of the jointly controlled entities
plus the premium paid/less any discount on acquisition in
so far as it has not already been written off or amortised or
released to income, less any identified impairment loss.
The Group’s share of post-acquisition results of its jointly
controlled entities is included in the consolidated income

statement.

Investments in associates

The consolidated income statement includes the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition results of its associates for
the year/period. In the consolidated balance sheet, interests
in associates are stated at the Group’s share of the net
assets of the associates plus the premium paid/less any
discount on acquisition in so far as it has not already been
written off or amortised or released to income, less any

identified impairment loss.

Turnover

Turnover represents the net amounts received and receivable
for goods sold and for services provided, less returns and

allowances, during the year/period.

Revenue recognition

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered

and title has passed.

Installation service income is recognised when services are

provided.

Interest income on bank deposits and loan receivable is
accrued on a time basis by reference to the principal

outstanding and at the interest rate applicable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investments in securities

Investments in securities are recognised on a trade-date

basis and are initially measured at cost.

Investments other than held-to-maturity debt securities are

classified as investment securities and other investments.

Investment securities, which are securities held for an
identified long-term strategic purpose, are measured at
subsequent reporting dates at cost, as reduced by any

impairment loss that is other than temporary.

Other investments are measured at fair value, with
unrealised gains and losses included in net profit or loss

for the year.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Construction in progress

are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

The gain or loss arising from disposal or retirement of an
asset is determined as the difference between the sale
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is

recognised in the income statement.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives and
after taking into account their estimated residual values,
using the straight line method, at the following rates per
annum:

Leasehold land and buildings Shorter of the relevant

lease term
or 40 years
Factory improvements 4.5% — 10%
Plant and machinery 9% — 15%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 15% — 20%
Motor vehicles 18% — 25%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
estimated useful lives on the same basis as owned assets

or, where shorter, the lease term.
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HE-_TT_F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of
an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised as an expense

immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an

impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets concerned to the Group. Assets
held under finance leases are capitalised at their fair value
at the date of acquisition. The corresponding liability to
the lessor, net of interest charges, is included in the balance
sheet as a finance lease obligation. Finance costs, which
represent the difference between the total leasing
commitments and the fair value of the assets acquired, are
charged to the income statement over the period of the
relevant leases so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
charge on the remaining balances of the obligations for

each accounting period.

All other leases are classified as operating leases and the
annual rental expenses are charged to the income statement

on a straight line basis over the relevant lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises direct materials and, where
applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that have
been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is computed on a weighted
average basis. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price less all estimated costs to completion and costs
to be incurred in making, selling and distribution.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at
the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing
on the balance sheet date. Profits and losses arising on
exchange are included in net profit or loss for the period.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
overseas operations are translated at exchange rates
prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income and expense
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are classified
as equity and transferred to the Group’s translation reserve.
Such translation differences are recognised as income or as
expenses in the period in which the operation is disposed
of.

Retirement benefit schemes

The retirement benefit costs charged in the income statement
represent the amount of contributions payable to the Group’s
defined contribution retirement benefit schemes and the
mandatory provident fund scheme.

Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the results for the year/
period as adjusted for items which are non-assessable or
disallowed. Timing differences arise from the recognition
for tax purposes of certain items of income and expense in
a different accounting period from that in which they are
recognised in the financial statements. The tax effect of
timing differences, computed using the liability method, is
recognised as deferred taxation in the financial statements
to the extent that it is probable that a liability or an asset
will crystallise in the foreseeable future.
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HE-_TT_F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

5. 2 EER 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION
MEHME » AL E2Z For management purposes, the Group is currently organised into two
W H AT o H R operating divisions — distribution and manufacturing of cement and
BA R — e &Rk clinker, and distribution of ceramic tiles, granite and marble products.
KYE e Bk DA K ) B The Group’s operations are principally located in Hong Kong and other
T LA REAE areas in the People’s Republic of China (the “Mainland China” or “PRC”).
Moo ASSEE 2 W I E An analysis of the Group’s revenue and segment results by business
ERTERWE L EAR segment is as follows:
AR (T B ) K
Mol (T A B R RE]) o
2 265 B 7 2 A SR IR
AR BB TR
REKE D BUSINESS SEGMENTS
ARRBE HHEE
KREHR TEARERER
Distribution Distribution of ceramic
and tiles, granite and marble products
manufacturing  HEER RERE @5t ga
of cement Sales of  Installation
and clinker goods services Total Consolidated
BETE ®ETE BETE BETE RETx
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ZEE-E-f-HE 1.1.2002 to
“EE-F+-fA=+-8H 31.12.2002
izl ON Segment revenue 239,361 17,670 980 18,650 258,011
HEEE Segment results 51,855 2,573 54,428
fil 7B 2 Indirect overheads (8,016)
&Gt B g A ) Gain on deconsolidation of
2 subsidiaries 27,838
@/’% it A1 Profit from operations 74,250
L A Finance costs (7,087)
I AL R A Share of results of a jointly
S controlled entity 3,483 3,483
I L i A Profit before taxation 70,646
“FF-FMA-HE 1.4.2001 to
“EF-E+ZA=1—H 31.12.2001
HRERA Segment revenue 27,019 8,346 104 8,450 35,469
NEES Segment results 2,898 293 3,191
T Amortisation of goodwill (2,925) = (2,925)
B X Indirect overheads (8,027)
ARGATENEAR Gain on deconsolidation
s of subsidiaries 61,121
Kkl Profit from operations 53,360
MHEAZ s Gain on financial restructuring 976,860
EARY Restructuring expenses (14,338)
& A Finance costs (58)
I AL 7 A Share of results of a jointly
S controlled entity 17,578 17,578
Wi Bt i i Profit before taxation 1,033,402
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B 7% 3R R Kt 5% () Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE_ZTZT_F+-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

SRECE tRE-f
2002 2001
TEEE HEEE
FEREE &R HREE tHA
KEERH  RERER g5 | KREAM  RERER it
Distribution ~ Distribution of Distribution ~ Distribution of
and  ceramic tiles, and  ceramic tiles,
manufacturing granite and manufacturing granite and
of cement marble of cement marble
and clinker products Total and clinker products Total
BT EETR BT BETn BT kT
HES'000 HES'000 HES$'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000
L BALANCE SHEET
B ASSETS
HER Segment asses 41,70 11,348 553,18 14087 3754 178l
i# Goodwill 86,005 - 86,005 90,686 = 90,686
bR Interest in a jointly
RS controled entity - 169,18 - 169,118
EltR & Amount due from a
RECE joinly controled eniy - 10361 - 10361
EltR Dividend receivable from
REzRA a jointly controlled entity - 13754 - 215754
FARAH Unallocated corporate
4 assels 40,51 70
GREEAR Consoliated total assts 619,374 30162
g LIABILITIES
Rk Seament s 41916 1,101 Iy 7338 8245 338
FARAH Unallocated corpoate
Ak lsblities 169,752 3659
GhER Consolidated
4k (otl Files

A (% ‘2> ) SHANGHAI ALLIED CEMENT LIMITED

VAL

3941

I
s
o
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B 7% R R Kt 5 (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_TT_F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

5. 2 %8&% (4) 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) HitE&EH (b) OTHER INFORMATION
ZEE-E-f-AE “EEZ-ENA-AE
CRRCETIAZT-H “EFFTIAZEH
1.1.2002 to 31.12.2002 1.4.2001 to 31.12.2001
ATHEE HEEH
AEREE THARER | MHREE EEMAREZR
KERAR Em | KEEAM & fh
Distribution  Distribution of Distribution Distribution
and ceramic tiles, and of ceramic
manufacturing granite and | manufacturing tiles, granite
of cement marble of cement and marble
and clinker products and clinker products
BRI BRI BT BRI
HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS'000 HKS°000
] H/ES Additions to property,
[T plant and equipment
- BAREHLR - Consolidation of a former
PR B b jointly controlled entity 285,289 - - -
- Jie - Others 3,53 - 837 269
R Depreciation and amortisation 15,729 40 2,939 59
AARERL Impairment losses recognised
HiEER in income statement - - - 80
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Bt 7% 3R &R MY 5% (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE_ZTZT_F+-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

5. 2 EER ()
LB D

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

iz G 7 T JE b [ B 4y 2 The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets,
43 FH A EE R T DA B K and additions to property, plant and equipment, analysed by geographical
W E - BB R area in which the assets are located.
A o
nE - BER
TEEEREE RELE
Additions to
Carrying amount property, plant
of segment assets and equipment
g3 i “%3%2-f%
-B-HE% WA-HZ
“RRCE | ZZ%-F
g 3 i Z%%-% [tZB=1-8 [tZAZ1-H
1.1.2002 1.4.2001
to to
2002 2001 3L12.2002 31122001
BETR kT BETR BT
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$000
LN Mainland China 637,041 308,206 359 87
Bk Hong Kong 2,33 30,956 569 744
679,374 339,162 4,108 1,581
6. THHEETE GAIN ON DECONSOLIDATION OF SUBSIDIARIES
M@ oAz W=
—EE_F —EE—F
—A—HZ WA—H=
—BECF -
+t=ZA=+-8H +ZHA=+—H
1.1.2002 1.4.2001
to to
31.12.2002 31.12.2001
BE TR BT T
HK$’000 HK$°000
A4 AFTE Gain on deconsolidation
WY g 2 ®) 2 Wi 45 of subsidiaries
(Bt at) (note) 27,838 61,121

MaE o WO B8 OR H
BAEE M
W E AT
- APl & i

& G B s A%t 7A (R 2> ) SHANGHAI ALLIED CEMENT LIMITED

Note: The amount represents gain on deconsolidation of subsidiaries which were

put into liquidation during the year/period.
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Bt 7% 3R &R MY 5% (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_TT_F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

—EE_-F —EFE
—A—-—HZ MH—HZ
—zE-x —zE—F
+t=ZA=+-~H +=ZHA=+—H
1.1.2002 1.4.2001
to to
31.12.2002 31.12.2001
BT T i T
HK$°000 HK$°000
8 W A T R B Profit from operations has been
(§FA) DR arrived at
JHH#ERA after charging:
BT Staff costs
1 Directors’ remuneration
(Kt its) (note 8) 2,081 871
R ARAR A B Contributions to retirement
fit 2 benefit schemes 144 176
HAth B TR A Other staff costs 13,315 6,301
15,540 7,348
W FUAE A B X Less: redundancy payment
2B included in
restructuring expenses - (1,212)
15,540 6,136
2% ST M Auditors’ remuneration
AT Current year 814 805
i A A Underprovision in prior
iy years 80 180
VESN N Depreciation of property,
2 plant and equipment
HEEE Owned assets 11,212 99
AR Al & L4 Assets held under finance
Ffi 2 & leases 8 3
R 48 48 7 40 Rental payment for premises
HAMEZME under operating leases 1,313 1,192
R - Loss on disposal and write-off
Wik 55 B wk of property, plant and
ZIEHE equipment 13 73
W EFHA and after crediting:
ALE A Interest income 611 452
HEBSEREL Gain on disposal of
i i investment in securities 1,253 -
BB (A 3% (B Refund of value-added tax 23,308 =

ZZZ_F 5, ANNUAL REPORT 2002
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Bt 7% 3R &R MY 5% (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

f e~ b ot A% 19 %A (& ‘> 3 SHANGHAI ALLIED CEMENT LIMITED

TZE_F+-A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

EEREEMS 8. DIRECTORS” AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
N om B N b The emoluments of the directors and the five highest paid individuals are
Z M AR summarised as follows:
(a) EEM £ (a) Directors’ emoluments
i = SEE
—A—HZ WA—H=
S5 “FE
+=—BA=+-H +ZHA=+—H
1.1.2002 1.4.2001
to to
31.12.2002 31.12.2001
BT T T T
HK$°000 HK$°000
M Directors’ fees:
WAL AT E E Independent non-executive
directors 120 75
H b 4 Other emoluments:
PATH S Executive directors
W4 B H A 4R Salaries and other benefits 1,733 770
BRHFE A Performance related bonuses 191 7
R ARAR A B Contributions to retirement
3K benefit schemes 37 19
1,961 796
2,081 871
HHEMSEENT The directors’ emoluments are within the following bands:
g pugS e
—A—-—HZ mA—H=
= = = i
+ZB=+-—-H +T-H=+—H
1.1.2002 1.4.2001
to to
31.12.2002 31.12.2001
Ex8A HEHEYH
Number of Number of
directors directors
TR Nil to
1,000,0007% HK$1,000,000 5 10
5 11,000,001 70 — HK$1,000,001 -
5 % 1,500,0007C -

HK$1,500,000 1
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Bt 7% 3R &R MY 5% (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

8.

E=EREEM (&)

(a)

(b)

EE=ME (8

1 A s S A/ = e
EFE_HFT A=
+—HIEFERN K
ZEE N A —
HZE XL 44+
“H=E1T—HHBH
A i AT ] B 4 o

EEM S

2 o N
AN NN
H(ZFEEZ —HFN
AH—H® %% —
£+—-HA=+—H:
WMZESHE) > AH
=S 's
(a) HE =& &M
AL (ZFFE —
FENMAH—HE X
EF—HF+H=T

8.

ST _F+_A=+T—HIEFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

No director waived any emoluments during the year ended 31st
December, 2002 and the period from 1st April, 2001 to 31st
December, 2001.

(b) Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals included two directors (1.4.2001
to 31.12.2001: two directors) of the Company, whose emoluments
are included in (a) above. The emoluments of the remaining three
highest paid individuals (1.4.2001 to 31.12.2001: three), which were
individually less than HK$1,000,000, were as follows:

—H : =%) 2 M
4 (¥ 1,000,000
L) R o
—EEC-F ZEE A
—A—HBZ MH—H=Z
—EEC-F ZEE A
+=B=+-8 +=H=+—H
1.1.2002 1.4.2001
to to
31.12.2002 31.12.2001
BET T i o T
HK$’000 HK$’000
o B H A 4F A Salaries and other benefits 828 680
WREFHZ Performance related
L4 bonuses 5 7
R AR A5 B Contributions to retirement
K benefit schemes 39 29
872 716

HE T F T
“H=+—HI®F
E R ZFE AR
WAH—HZE &%
— 4+ H =+
H [ A8 45 |
I S AT AT I 4 T
W% % e AN
(EHEEE) - fEH
8K NN S
[ 2 sk A k2

W o

During the year ended 31st December, 2002 and the period from 1st
April, 2001 to 31st December, 2001, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to the five highest paid individuals and directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office.

“ZZ - HF 53 ANNUAL REPORT 2002
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B #& 3R & Mt 53 (8B) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE_ZTZT_F+-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002
9. MBEMHzZWHE 9. GAIN ON FINANCIAL RESTRUCTURING
—2BCF —EFT—F
—B—-HZ=% mA—HZ=z
—EF-F =
+ZA=+-—-H +—-H=+—H
1.1.2002 1.4.2001
to to
31.12.2002 31.12.2001
BE TR T T
HK$°000 HK$°000
B2 s Gain on debts waived - 957,583
G4 — T & 8 R Write-back of share of
Ji 48 43 [n] loss in an associate - 19,375
i 6 B B A A s Loss on disposal of
(Hf7E33) subsidiaries (note 33) - (98)
- 976,860
10. @t & &K AR 10. FINANCE COSTS
—2BCF —EF—F
—B—-HZ=% mA—HZ=z
—EEC-F —ERE A
+ZA=+-—-H +—-H=+—H
1.1.2002 1.4.2001
to to
31.12.2002 31.12.2001
BE TR T T
HK$°000 HK$°000
UTFEHZFAE : Interest on:
WIS TRCINESS 4 Bank borrowings wholly
fE 8 2 RT3 repayable within five years 7,082 56
il 5 L ) 7K 4 Finance lease obligations 5 2
7,087 58
LB B oAb Jf A% (5 7 (% ‘0 3) SHANGHAI ALLIED CEMENT LIMITED ZZEZ-F 53 ANNUAL REPORT 2002




Bt 7% 3R &R MY 5% (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_TT_F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

11. % 18 11. TAXATION
—EE_-F ZEE A
—HA—-BZ% MH—HZ
—EE-f —EE -
+t=ZA=+-~H +=ZHA=+—H
1.1.2002 1.4.2001
to to
31.12.2002 31.12.2001
BT T i T
HK$°000 HK$’000
Bl A4 The charge comprises:

Hh I i £ PRC income tax 5,550 -

G4 — 2L Share of taxation of a jointly
T ) B i B IH controlled entity 470 2,263
EHERLIE (B 7E30) Deferred taxation (note 30) 1,087 -
7,107 2,263

HREFELEZ A
TEAE BE /1 A S 4 A
G T B i
N I G i

I i A5 B TG 4% 4 Rl
S % B8\ 2 B R
A o RIE A A RN E
1 2 B L > b
Bt Jig 2 =] K i A [R] 42 il
HEHE T R (R AR A A
AF R T AR TN R
BAS B AR B o i
1% = 4F I 2 7T 3 50%
B T A5 B e

Mk FEE—FEHEPH
B ) 2 w2 R A AR
JRE T A e B T AR B
Wil A 42 [ 3l 4 b B Y
BRL —ZF L —4F A
—HzE_FE -4+ =
A =+ — H M E & 5
5 > Hom e [ £
(R FEEZF DG
M JE 2~ F]) T8 BB T
W 50% T B B 15 B o
2 BilR 5 13.5% -

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is made as the group companies
operating in Hong Kong do not have any assessable profit for the year/

period.

PRC income tax is calculated at the rates applicable to respective
subsidiaries. In accordance with the tax legislations applicable to foreign
investment enterprises, certain subsidiaries and the former jointly
controlled entity in the PRC are entitled to exemptions from PRC income
tax for the two years commencing from the first profit-making year of
operation and thereafter, entitled to a 50% relief from PRC income tax
for the next three years.

No provision for PRC income tax had been made for the Group for the
period from 1.4.2001 to 31.12.2001 as the PRC subsidiary entered into
the first profit-making year and was exempted from PRC income tax in
2001, which was also the first year that the former jointly controlled
entity, which became a subsidiary in 2002, enjoyed a 50% relief from

PRC income tax. The applicable income tax rate was 13.5%.

EETEFYY
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Bt 7% 3R &R MY 5% (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

ZE+ZRA=+—RALLEE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

12. & B 12. DIVIDEND
—EECF ZEE
—-A—-B% WH—H=
e “EEF
+ZA=1-H +tZA=+—H
1.1.2002 1.4.2001
to to
31.12.2002 31.12.2001
BETT T o
HK$’000 HK$°000
A Ordinary shares:
EEAHE Final proposed dividend of
B s W3 HK3 cents per share
(ZFF-#NA-AZ (1.4.2001 to

ZEE-HFFZAZF—H ) 31.12.2001: nil) 21,882 -

HROERREARANE
g W 3 (R —
EPNH—HE - FE—
E+ A=+ —H

) > 3 ZH R ORI B
P I S N A AR

The final dividend of HK3 cents (1.4.2001 to 31.12.2001: nil) per share
has been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by the

shareholders in general meeting.
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Bt 7% 3R &R MY 5% (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE_TZT_FT-H=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

13. 8RR EA 13. EARNINGS PER SHARE
i A 2 A T AR BB A The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the net profit
R W OF TR OB W for the year of HK$45,082,000 (1.4.2001 to 31.12.2001:
45,082,000 7C (—~&F & — HK$1,028,584,000) and on 729,395,043 (1.4.2001 to 31.12.2001: the
FPH—-HZE _FTEF— weighted average number of 615,683,440) shares, which shares have been
F+H+ZH=+—H & adjusted for the year/period for the consolidation of the Company’s share
s 1,028,584,000 jt) K on 20th December, 2002.

729,395,043 fix & 1 (=
TR H—HE
FTE—F+ A =+—
H : m # F # &
615,683,440 ) #H & >
IR ErE Y= NN ———
FoFET_AZTHZ
AN\ B A B AR
R AE e

R4 0 B A T 9 & ] Additional basic and diluted earnings per share figures have also been
H z & A sk E 2 9k presented, based on the earnings excluding certain non-recurring items
HE A o 8 v A A B as follows:

HACESWT :

—EF-F =
—AR—-B=% mA—H=z
—E2EZF —EE
+t=ZB=+-—-H +tZA=1+—H
1.1.2002 1.4.2001
to to
31.12.2002 31.12.2001
BT T T T
HK$°000 HKS$’000
AFBE /1A T R I A Net profit for the year/period 45,082 1,028,584
RS Adjustments for:
M EA i Gain on financial restructuring - (976,860)
AP Restructuring expenses - 14,338
FAE 5 5 R AR A Earnings for the year/period
B 4 A for the purpose of additional
AR/ W basic and diluted earnings
BA OREL4E per share excluding certain
AT HRBHEEA) non-recurring items 45,082 66,062
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Bt 7% 3R &R MY 5% (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
HE_ZTZT_F+-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

13 IR &8 F (%) 13. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)
—ZET_F —E%—F
—A—H= WH—H=
—EF-F =
+t=ZBA=t—-H +ZA=+—H
1.1.2002 1.4.2001
to to
31.12.2002 31.12.2001
e Number of shares:
FAE =B R A Weighted average number of
B 2 % 58 i ordinary shares for the
- B purpose of basic earnings
per share 729,395,043 615,683,440
0 i 2 V8 TE Effect of dilutive potential
B ordinary shares
— [ i 2 R — convertible note - 144,494
FIAE 5t 5 TR Weighted average number of
BF 2 &8 ordinary shares for the
B o HE - 34 purpose of diluted
earnings per share 729,395,043 615,827,934
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Bf #% & &R Mt 3 (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_TT_F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

14.M% - BE 14. PROPERTY, PLANT

kR®&hE AND EQUIPMENT
HELH BER B
LEr HERE BE  REIR ZERZB nE X
Furniture,
Leasehold Construction fixtures
land and Leasehold Plant and in and Motor
buildings ~ improvements ~ machinery progress  equipment vehicles Total
BT BEfr ERfx  BEfR  EEFR BT B¥Ax
HKSO00  HKS000  HKS'000 HESO00  HKSO00  HKS'O00  HKS'00
158 THE GROUP
Ak )
ZREZE-f-0 At Ist January, 2002 T 155 il 46 315 536 128
BANEHLR Consolidation of a former
EHRE jointly controlled enity 163292 - 4418 1575 1,408 4379 44601
¥ Additions 175 0 1001 1267 152 7l 4108
i s Disposals and write-offs - (155) - - 9 (1,140) (1,304)
B Reclassifications 17 BAX 280 (3152) = - -
“REZE
+ZAZt-H At 315t December, 2002 164,325 95 118430 936 1926 4366 431,160
FERHE DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
ZRRZE-R-0 At Ist January, 2002 416 6 3 - 3 U mn
GANEHLR Consolidation of a former
filke jointy controlled entty U5 - 123,680 = 963 1,366 160,783
Engh Provided for the year 4m 7 6330 = 131 68 11,220
RS Eliminated on disposals
Js and write-off - 19) - - ?) (956) (91)
S5
VN At 315t December, 2002 30,067 6l 130,013 - LIS 142 171,498
FEFE NET BOOK VALUES
S5
t2h=t-H At 315t December, 2002 125,58 §74 145,499 956 8l 334 179,661
Rk
+2A=t-H At 31st December, 2001 35 149 8 46 3 512 1812
ZZZ_F 5, ANNUAL REPORT 2002 LB s f A% 15 %A 0% .03 SHANGHAI ALLIED CEMENT LIMITED




Bt 7% 3R &R MY 5% (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE_ZTZT_F+-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

14. 1% BB RRE (8

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

WP HG A M The net book value of leasehold land and buildings which are under
B b M FodE 5 2 0RO medium-term leases comprises:
5
&
THE GROUP
= —FE-F
2002 2001
BT T S T
HK$°000 HK$’000
Filk 2 T Land in Hong Kong 278 325
T LN 2 L Land outside Hong Kong 124,980 =
125,258 325

AR~ B R s 2 IR
THT V5 (B B2 45 AR 45 ml % AR
HIFHEZEREHBK
29,0007 (& E —4 -
W 37,000 J6) o

ENVANID A NI i
a4y 36 ~ WS K S

The net book value of furniture, fixtures and equipment includes an
amount of approximately HK$29,000 (2001: HK$37,000) in respect of

assets held under finance leases.

The Company had no property, plant and equipment at the balance sheet
date.
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B #& 3R & MY 53 () Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_TT_F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002
15. 7 & 15. GOODWILL
K&
THE GROUP
T o
HKS$’000
AR COST
NEFEE—H—HRK At Ist January, 2002 and
N EECHE+H=+—H 31st December, 2002 93,611
#e AMORTISATION
R_EF_H—H—H At Ist January, 2002 2,925
A T A Charge for the year 4,681
A EE-EF-A=Z+—H At 31st December, 2002 7,606
REFE NET BOOK VALUES
WoEZE—HE+"H=+—H At 31st December, 2002 86,005
N oEE—-HE+-HA=+—H At 31st December, 2001 90,686
AT AR - Goodwill is amortised over 20 years.
16. TG M B A A2~  16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE TO
EAHEB L RIE SUBSIDIARIES
PN
THE COMPANY
—EF-F —2F-F
2002 2001
BET T T o
HK$°000 HKS$’000
FigE Unlisted investments 251,394 251,395
JRE Wiz B/ 2 ) Amounts due from
X T 4 subsidiaries less allowances 45,623 15,255
297,017 266,650
JRE A5F Bf JE 4 7] K IR Amounts due to subsidiaries 6,271 5,345
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Bt 7% 3R &R MY 5% (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-ZZT-_F+-A=1T—HILEFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

16. TG B A 7 # & 16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE TO
FE 1S Bt /BB A R FK 1B (48) SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
EN/NEIE S ()= AN Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31st December,
—EEFECHEL+ZH =T 2002 are set out in note 41.

— H ZREE R R4 -

JiE qﬁ(/?ﬁéﬁ R} J&§ 2 7] Kk The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
LR i E I W& have no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of the directors, amounts
B E 2 A o R will not be repayable in the next twelve months from the balance sheet
RBEAGEEHRE B EZ T date and the amounts are therefore shown as non-current.

A A KR ROE
% S IS 2 R B o

2% B A R A A None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end of
B4R W N AT o] IR (] A the year/period or at any time during the year/period.

I AT AT R 1R 2 (50

¥ o

17. PG EES KRR 17. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

r&E
THE GROUP

—EECF —E2E-F

2002 2001

BET T T oo

HK$°000 HK$’000

BT A % A Share of net assets - 169,118
A i 3 ] £ Amount due from a jointly

1 1 B IH controlled entity 13,230 13,230

W B Less: Allowance (13,230) (13,230)

- 169,118
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Bt 7% 3R &R MY 5% (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_TT_F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

17. PGSR R4 (B)  17. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (Continued)

T K B R ST R £ 2 3t Particulars of the jointly controlled entity at 31st December, 2002,
[ 2 ol A M A B R A T which is established and operates in Mainland China, are as follows:

“A=EZt—HZHEHBEHT

AEEBEFEZ
HEZHEREE ERE=EN dAMEAL R FTEXR

Proportion of

Name of registered capital
jointly controlled entity Registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
%

bl = R A R A

(Tl =3]) 5,012,500% it 60 R RO RE
Foshan Hunter Ceramic US$5,012,500 Manufacture and

Co., Ltd. (“Foshan Hunter”) sale of ceramic

products

JRE Wi B[R] 42 ) M 2 SKOH T The amount due from the jointly controlled entity is unsecured,
T HE PR~ A S B I [ E K interest-free and has no fixed terms of repayment.
HY o
B EE—F T H =+ — At 31st December, 2001, the Group had a 60% interest in Shanghai
H o XAEBEHESE LIGKEZ SAC, a corporate equity joint venture established in Mainland China
60% 1 #i o b i K6 5 AE and engaged in the manufacturing of cement. As explained in note
KB ST 2 B il A A 1, since 14th March, 2002, Shanghai SAC became a subsidiary of
¥ RFEEKIRER - % the Group and the results, assets and liabilities of Shanghai SAC
B EE L > 3 =X 4 have been consolidated into those of the Group.

=AM HEGE S E KR
RALEZWME~F > W E
BRI Z M BERAM
EAR AR AEAREEZ 4
HE AR -

“ZZ - HF 53 ANNUAL REPORT 2002 L BB 4R AL 197 B .03 SHANGHAI ALLIED CEMENT LIMITED



, B 7% 3 &R MY 5F (88) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE_TZT_F+_-_A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

it

e

T
7
N

18. TG Bt & 1 A #E & 18. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

r&EE
THE GROUP
—FE=F —FE-F
2002 2001
BE T e T
HK$°000 HK$’000
o005 EE Share of net assets - =
JRE Wi W 5 /A R 3RO Amount due from an associate 41,479 41,479
W B Less: Allowance (41,479) (41,479)
W oEE AT = Particulars of the Group’s associate at 31st December, 2002, which is
T —H > AREFHRF established in Mainland China, are as follows:
K B K 2 B N R E
R o
AW R
BRENRERE o fit & & EXEAH TEEK
Proportion of
registered capital
Name of associate Registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
%
i 1L T =W PR AR A R
([=%1) 6,652,8005 JC 48 EEREEWEE
Foshan Three Union US$6,652,800 Manufacture and sale
Ceramic Co., Ltd. of ceramic products
(“Three Union™)
19. 5 KR E 19. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES
r&EE
THE GROUP
—FE=F —FF-F
2002 2001
BE T i T
HK$°000 HK$°000
BERE Investment securities
IR A S Non-current equity securities
F b A A Unlisted shares, at cost - 4,154
W R 1R Less: Impairment losses - (4,154)
MABABRECREE All the investment securities were disposed of during the year ended 31st
SEEHE+H=Z+ December, 2002.
— HIEFEERNHE -
L BB als 2 R (9 7 [ 20 @ SHANGHAI ALLIED CEMENT LIMITED “Z T _FF % ANNUAL REPORT 2002




BF #% ¥R & Mf 5% (48) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-ZTZ-_FTZA=1T—HIEFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

20 FEY X 20. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
MEE _FE A+ During the year ended 31st December, 2002, properties were transferred
A=t—HIEFERN - from trade debtors of Shanghai SAC in lieu of cash settlement and
EiwKRBRZE S EH A registered in the name of Shanghai SAC.
e 2 HY) LA B

RN MARY XD
B E EBKEST -

21. 7 8 21. INVENTORIES
rEHE
THE GROUP
- —EE-F
2002 2001
BET T BT
HK$°000 HK$°000
JFUR Raw materials 19,353 2,250
75 8 i Work in progress 1,693 570
Ly Finished goods 5,444 1,046
26,490 3,866

5 B
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Bt 7% 3R &R MY 5% (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-ZZT-_F+-A=1T—HILEFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

22. EZ R HEMERNRE 22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

AERGTHELEF The Group has a policy of allowing its trade customers credit periods
ZfEHEH— & im30H £ normally ranging from 30 days to 120 days. Included in trade and other
1200 NEE o A= FE— receivables at 31st December, 2002 are trade receivables of
FH+_HAH=F+—HZH HK$151,434,000 (2001: HK$6,338,000) and their aged analysis is as
Gy Je KA i K T T A follows:
16 8 T e R IE i i
151,434,0007C (—~F % —
4 : #%6,338,0007C) >
HEE#E S F -
& E
THE GROUP
—2EC-F —E2E-F
2002 2001
BE T W T o
HK$°000 HK$°000
Z—90H 0 - 90 days 87,940 6,245
91— 180H 91- 180 days 40,315 93
181—365H 181 - 365 days 9,963 -
A — 4 Over 1 year 13,216 =
151,434 6,338
&5y R H A R i #)OAE f Included in the trade and other receivables are:
&
(1) # " 11,651,0007C (i) Loan receivable of HK$11,651,000 (2001: nil) which carries interest
(T BE—4F ;) at prime rate set by the bank in Mainland China plus 5% per annum,
Z Al ] &R is secured on the receivables, including receivable from a fellow
B K R SR AT E 2 subsidiary of the Group, and properties of the borrower and repayable
1B B AR 5% in May 2003.
FHEAE R s E DL
WK TR (95 JE i A
L — K R K
N Z R IER) B
NZ Z )3 Rk
fMan o HR ZFX
Z=HTHHEE -
(i) # % 12,997,000 (ii) Commercial bills of HK$12,997,000 (2001: nil), which can be
(ZEE—4 ) discounted for cash with financial institutions.
2R > M
DL B 07 =1 4
R R B & o
L BB Al R RS (9 %A (B 0 3 SHANGHAI ALLIED CEMENT LIMITED —ZE—Z &% ANNUAL REPORT 2002




B 7% 3R & Mt 5F (48) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-ZTZ-_FTZA=1T—HIEFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

23.E A EHBITER 23. PLEDGED SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS
W B K T RATIE A A The amount represents deposits pledged to banks to secure short-
LT EEHBITEEBERZ term banking facilities granted to the Group and are therefore
£ 3K %4 RN B 5 U B classified as current assets.

24 EZREMENREEHIZ S 24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND DEPOSITS

M_FEX_H+_A=+—H Included in trade and other payables and deposits at 31st
2B Gy K A R AT S I B 4 4 December, 2002 are trade payables of HK$32,018,000 (2001:
Th 5" 5 AT KOIE & HK$29,056,000) and their aged analysis is as follows:

32,018,0007C ( — & %E — 4 : i
#29,056,00000) > H R B 4> A7

/I
r&E
THE GROUP

—EEC-F —EE-F
2002 2001
BT T T T
HK$°000 HK$°000
Z—90H 0 - 90 days 29,657 1,868
91— 180H 91 - 180 days 609 2,562
181—365H 181 = 365 days 1,286 =
A 14 Over 1 year 466 24,626
32,018 29,056
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Bt 7% 3R &R MY 5% (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE_ZTZT_F+-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

25 ME MO AE

25. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES
iftzmERE IfzREEERE

Present value

Minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments
305 | op3-f | csEog| cza-k
2002 2001 2002 2001
EETR ¥ BRI BT
HKS000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000
REMERAGA Amounts payable under
iftz a8 finance leases
Ll Within one year 1 11 1 0
BEEERLE In the second to fifth
(AfERE) years inclusive Y] 40 % 3l
4 51 k)| kil
B RERAER Less: Future finance charges 9) (14) - -
s R E Present value of lease obligations k)| 3 Rl 31
B A% Less: Amount due for settlement within
EREZ4% one year (shown under
(BHIfERBAE) current liabilities) ! (6)
BR-FRERZ 2% Amount due for settlement after one year V] 3

7 4K 1 T3 AR 15 L&A A
A& T~ 8K
B HAHM T ES
o E _FEE _FT
ZH=E=+t—HLEFEEZ
FEEEEREMES11%
(ZFF—FMNWH—H
FOERE—FE T H=
+—H 11%) - FlFR
IV AHZ HEE -
B A FH &0 ¥ e [ E R K
75 R FT 5L e

The Group holds certain of its furniture, fixtures and equipment under
finance leases. The average lease term is 5 years. For the year ended
31st December, 2002, the average effective borrowing rate was 11%
(1.4.2001 to 31.12.2001: 11%). Interest rates are fixed at the contract

date. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis.
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Bf #% & &R Mt 3 (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_TT_F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

26. SRITE X 26. BANK BORROWINGS
A&
THE GROUP
— —EE-F
2002 2001
BETR T T
HK$°000 HK$°000
WATMH R (ARE Bank borrowings, which are
SR IR 5 — 4F 4 15 repayable on demand or within
®) mAE T one year, comprise the
FIH - following:
SRAT 3 Bank loans 133,730 -
|ATHE O HE X Bank import loans - 1,089
|ATIEX Bank overdrafts 216 =
133,946 1,089
ST Analysed as:
R Secured 216 1,089
38 41K Unsecured 133,730 -
133,946 1,089
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Bt 7% 3R &R MY 5% (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

ZTZT-FFTZA=Z1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

27. IR R 27. SHARE CAPITAL
EEROEA £k
Number of
ordinary shares Amount
T T
HK$°000
EERA Authorised:
RZFE—FNH—H Ordinary shares of
M 0100 Z HK$0.10 each
o3 i at Ist April, 2001 2,000,000,000 200,000
S R (E Cancellation of unissued
W 150.1070 2 R BEAT authorised share capital
% E A of HK$0.10 each (1,065,123,911) (106,512)
I 6 18V 0. 1070 Reduction of the nominal
Z BB IRG value of issued shares of
ERay Qg HK$0.10 each to
¥ 0.010C HKS$0.01 each - (84,139)
H8 P T (A Increase in authorised
i #0.0100 share capital
ik A of HK$0.01 each 39,065,123,911 390,651
RZ_FF—%+ZA Ordinary shares of
=t—HEREE HK$0.01 each at
10,0170 2 & 8 i 31st December, 2001 40,000,000,000 400,000
B8 1 1 (A V& 0.010 2 Increase in authorised share
W A capital of HK$0.01 each 10,000,000,000 100,000
M) A 9 00T Z Reduction of the nominal
BT R value of issued shares of
% 9 IR E HK$0.01 each to
¥ #50.005 7T HK$0.005 each 18,234,876,100 -
& 1 15 I T (v %0.0057C Consolidation of every
Z S0/ 78 50 ordinary shares of
5 T (E HK$0.005 each to 1
w0252 ordinary share of
78 M 1 HKS$0.25 each (66,234,876,100) -
AZEEF_ELZAZ1T—H Ordinary shares of
B EER025TTL HK$0.25 each at
o 31st December, 2002 2,000,000,000 500,000

L 5 B A ab i A%t 7A (R > 3) SHANGHAI ALLIED CEMENT LIMITED
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Bt 7% 3R &R MY 5% (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
TZFTZA=1T—HLEFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

27. B A& (#&) 27. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

EEROHA &8
Number of
ordinary shares Amount
BT T
HKS$°000
SEITRARRAE Issued and fully paid:
RZFF—4FWA—H Ordinary shares of
5 M T B 0.107T 2 HK$0.10 each at
T3 Ist April, 2001 934,876,089 93,487
I T R 0.1008 2 Reduction of the nominal
B 817 Ik value of issued shares of
E 5 (E HK$0.10 each to HK$0.01
#EH0.017C each - (84,139)
R E AT R Issue of shares of HK$0.01
[RERE AN each in accordance with
Z Mty the financial restructuring 35,534,876,089 355,349
RZFE—4HE+ZA Ordinary shares of
=t—HEREH HK$0.01 each at
850,010 2 % 3 i 31st December, 2001 36,469,752,178 364,697
I I 1V 0.01 7 Reduction of the nominal
ZEETIRGEE value of issued shares of
B HK$0.01 each to
it #0.0057C HK$0.005 each = (182,348)
B U 5 B £ 50,005 7E Consolidation of every
Z SO 4 i 25 50 ordinary shares of
5 i HK$0.005 each to 1
02570 ordinary share of
Z Mk HK$0.25 each (35,740,357,135) -
A e Ordinary shares of
+-H=+— HK$0.25
H&Efﬁ«%ﬁ%o 2570 L each at
T3 31st December, 2002 729,395,043 182,349
—ZZ —FF3 ANNUAL REPORT 2002 L BB R 9 % % 203 SHANGHAI ALLIED CEMENT LIMITED




Bt 7% 3R &R MY 5% (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
TZE_F+-A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

27. IR (#) 27. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
(a) EE R K (a) Authorised share capital

BE-FTE—F+ A=+
Fak LR A R o AR R
CECRETE S

WER -FF—-FHLH+HH
TR B EM > AN A KA
BLLH 5O KA

() R AT KM 2 mE S
W ¥ 0.100C HI B = #5 ¥ 0.01
JG o A4 A s 93,487,000
gL Z B OB OAT Ol A (/W
934,876,089 1% 4 ik T {E #5 s
0.107C 2 B 43 40 1) > il
W 84,139,000C & W W
9,348,0007C (F1934,876,089 /8%
5 B T E 5 ¥ 0.010C 2
) -

(ii) #F 84 % ¥ 190,651,0000C 2 %
R AT A (B ik b
84,139,0007C Z * #F 17 M
A e

(iii) ¥ 22 B A 1 i %5 9,348,00070
1 = #5 % 400,000,0007C >
43 F540,000,000,000 1% 4F i 1
B % ¥ 00100 2 By o

WE-FFHE+ A=+
HOE 4R JE T - A 7 A B i
BT B

() WMEBRER _-FF _FH
A+ =H&8T2HRHEHA
o NS - B
> B E KA BB
400,000,0007C 4 i & W ¥
500,000,0007C > 4 A
50,000,000,000 % 4 A% i {E
¥ 0.010C 2 B o

A % ‘2> 2 SHANGHAI ALLIED CEMENT LIMITED

During the nine months ended 31st December, 2001,
the following changes in the share capital of the

Company took place:

Pursuant to the financial restructuring which was
completed on 15th May, 2001, the Company’s share

capital was restructured in the following manners.

(i) The nominal value of each issued share was
reduced from HKS$0.10 to HKS$0.01. The
Company’s issued share capital of HK$93,487,000
comprising 934,876,089 shares of HK$0.10 each
was reduced by HK$84,139,000 to HK$9,348,000
comprising 934,876,089 shares of HK$0.01 each.

(i) The entire unissued share capital of
HK$190,651,000 (including the unissued share
capital of HK$84,139,000 resulting from the

aforesaid capital reduction) was cancelled.

(iii) The authorised share capital was increased from
HK$9,348,000 to HK$400,000,000 divided into
40,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each.

During the year ended 31st December, 2002, the
following changes in the share capital of the Company

took place:

(i) Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting held
on 23rd May, 2002, the authorised share capital
was increased from HK$400,000,000 to
HK$500,000,000 divided into 50,000,000,000
shares of HK$0.01 each.
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HE-_TT_F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

27. B A (4H)
(a) EE R A& (%)

(i) MW ER —FF 4+
— H LA 8472 BREE
Al K g b 2 R AP R
Z.BREBITRMGZE
B B 7 % 0.01 70 HI W8 = W5 W
0.0057C > HL I [F K > 450
J& & B T E W ¥ 0.0057T 2
B4 B OF B 1% S T T (s
¥ 0.2570 2 W o

(b) BB1THRA
WE-FF-E+ A=+
AR JUARH B A

(1) AN\ ¥ W DL & B AT
9,600,000,000 8% & B% T {H #
#0.010C 2 B o

(i) & 2~ w" % W {E ¥ A7
934,876,089 1% & I THI {E #5 s
0.017C Z et » B AL [
B AR > BEMHEL
EHEN - AR SR A
NV E DN S

(iii) & 2 ® % ®wW E #F AT
25,000,000,000/8¢ A5 % T8 {8 #s
¥ oo0.01o0 2 & B o Ik
[ AII-Shanghai Inc. 2 ¥ 17 it
A 2 83.3%HE 4 o AIl-
Shanghai Inc.2 &£ % & & £
L\ bR 60%HE i o

HE_ZZ_HFE+_A=+—H1
S AN < A w0 < TR (= D o Vi
G 0F > AN AU ¥ 364,697,0007C Z
B AT B AR (36,469,752, 178 % & At
18] ¥ W 0.0100 2 Oy A %) e
7 ¥ 182,348,0007C £ s # 182,349,000
G (729,395,043 % &5 11 18 {H #5 #5025
JC 2 MO AR o BT EI L 2 B AT
B RECEBEEARAANAZ HEHA

“ZZ - HF 53 ANNUAL REPORT 2002

27. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
(a) Authorised share capital (Continued)

(ii) Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the
shareholders at the special general meeting held
on 19th November, 2002, the nominal value of
each issued share was reduced from HK$0.01 to
HK$0.005 and at the same time, every 50 shares
of HK$0.005 each were consolidated into 1 share
of HK$0.25 each.

(b) Issued share capital

During the nine months ended 31st December, 2001,

as a result of the financial restructuring,

(i) The Company issued 9,600,000,000 shares of
HK$0.01 each at par for cash.

(ii) The Company issued 934,876,089 shares of
HK$0.01 each at par for the partial settlement of
the Group’s obligations to bankers, finance lease

creditors, holder of convertible note and creditors.

(iii) The Company issued 25,000,000,000 shares of
HK$0.01 each at par for the acquisition of a
83.3% interest of the issued share capital of AII-
Shanghai Inc. The major asset of AIl-Shanghai
Inc. is a 60% interest in Shanghai SAC.

During the year ended 31st December, 2002, as a result of
the aforesaid reduction of the nominal value and the
consolidation of the shares, the Company’s issued share
capital of HK$364,697,000 comprising 36,469,752,178
shares of HK$0.01 each was reduced by HK$182,348,000
to HK$182,349,000 comprising 729,395,043 shares of
HK$0.25 each. The amount of issued shares so reduced
was transferred to the contributed surplus account of the

Company.
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28.

R ES S

WA N F R — UL A =+
TOH G R R R RE T A (] 8 A
RESE®E ) > AN A EF G m AL
L = N I /N Pl 6 o (T = 31
& B 1% & WM > IRk #l 2
166 R ME A N F Ry o AR % R
W B R T RR M Bom B B E
A A AN ) B AT RS 10% ©
RS RN —FE 4 N\AH
T HAHR o BEERESEA A
W oEE—FHA+ A HBET R
WEMBRE® R RN FERE
—FE=H=+—HMRITMHEZ2H
28,500,000 17 B B #E £ 2 5%k o

YNNI a8 A T
FhE ) CRERN B ER A
TEHE R R
Rtz EERN B2 HEE
B AAR NGRS e
o 2 Bl R B AR A A K B
Bz EME - AN E &5z
B oo B RE G E N % —
ERA -t HER -

MR 95 B T S AR ST 1) R AT o] At B A
HE wF 8 52 2 B R HE W T 2 B AR
BN 1568 I R AL v ey R RE ST
Z HMZ AN A BB AT B 10% ([ 5
B RERRAE D) o Bk % 10%FR i &
Ao BN A B AL E R T ) iR 6E IR
BEHZAN A B AT KM 10% -
MR 95 B T A AR ST 1) R AT o] At B
HE S 3 552 A 1 R A7 B B R R 2
iy 8B i 2 RSB A N\ KRR 2
BB AT By 4A B > 30% o B JE 15
AN ) B et e > A HIAT AT —
AT AT ] AR ON R RE B 2 A
W K2 By R AR AR AR E
BEAT Y 2 1% » B UK 18 AT fo] & -
SR N = e S e
WE Y5 78 15 3| 18 1 I B ME JE L AT
e o fig N AR = Bl H W R 1248 A
S:1E S o o S IRV |
W ESAHZHE AN LR 2 R
HE 5 BN AT B B s R 2
MR RE W 2 By B & 3L A
oy A B BT AR 2 0.1% K HE (H &8
i ¥ ¥ 5,000,0000C > HI ZH SE AR ) AR
NI | AR

% 19 7 (% ‘2> 3 SHANGHAI ALLIED CEMENT LIMITED

TT_F+-A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the old share option scheme (the “Old Option
Scheme”) which was adopted by the Company on 22nd
April, 1994, the board of directors of the Company may
grant to any director or employee of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries options to subscribe for shares in the
Company, in accordance with the terms of the Old Option
Scheme. The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted must not exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time. The Old
Option Scheme was terminated on 21st August, 2001. All
of the 28,500,000 share options outstanding at 31st March,
2001 lapsed on 15th May, 2001 following the resignation
of the option holders on the same date according to the
terms of the Old Option Scheme.

The Company’s new share option scheme (the “New Option
Scheme”) was adopted by the shareholders pursuant to a
resolution passed on 23rd May, 2002 for the primary
purpose of providing the participants with the opportunity
to acquire proprietary interests in the Company and to
encourage participants to work towards enhancing the value
of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole. The New Option
Scheme will expire on 22nd May, 2012.

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the New Option Scheme and any
other schemes is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares
of the Company in issue at the date of shareholders’
approval of the New Option Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate
Limit”) or, if such 10% limit is refreshed, at the date of
shareholders’ approval of the renewal of the Scheme
Mandate Limit. The maximum aggregate number of shares
which may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the New
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes, must
not exceed 30% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue from time to time. The number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted to any individual
in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company then in issue, without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. Each grant of options to any
director, chief executive or substantial shareholder must be
approved by independent non-executive directors. Where
any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director or any of their respective
associates would result in the shares of the Company issued
and to be issued upon exercise of options already granted
and to be granted in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s issued
share capital and with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000
in the 12-month period up to the date of grant must be
approved in advance by the Company’s shareholders.
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HE-_TT_F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

28. BB R B (4 28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

JIT % B P ME ZEL N B B O RE ST 21
HOA 8 8 40 > 3 28 8k 5 0 B T RE 4%
5 W % 10.007C o J i RE AT A
6 E 2 B W IRE 51 8 A A0 R )
HA T P9 R R AR BT IR S ) 2 Mk
AT - MEAT B OR 1S A 4R
JB HE % 104F AT (8 b A A ") # F
i A |7 N 39 NN o I
H A 7 B 28 B 2 i i (8 % 2% 4 i
H W AT 22 A R0z ki
B (DL & 2 M) o

REE_FE 4+ _H=+—H
1E B R AN A AR PR T
ME 5T B 2 B R RE o
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Options granted must be taken up within 21 days from the
date of grant, upon payment of HK$10 per option. An option
may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the New
Option Scheme at any time during the effective period of
the New Option Scheme to be notified by the board of
directors which shall not be later than 10 years from the
date of grant. The exercise price is determined by the
directors of the Company, and will not be less than the
higher of the closing price of the Company’s shares on the
date of grant, and the average closing price of the shares
on the Stock Exchange for the five business days

immediately preceding the date of grant.

During the year ended 31st December, 2002, no options

were granted under the New Option Scheme.
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HE_ZTZT_F+-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

29. f# 1& 29. RESERVES

kft R B Zitid
HEE BOBE RHER EXRE SHEE e (E4) 8%
Share Capital Accumulated
premium  redemption  Contributed  Translation Merger Other profit
account reserve surplus reserve reserve TEserves (deficit) Total
Ehtr  RETx  EWTx E%Tx EWTx RETx ENTx E%Ax
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
158 THE GROUP
RZFZ-EWA-H A Ist April, 2001 4065 918 - (149) 1799 - (L3126 (L2538
W kR Arising from capita
Rk reduction of ordinary
(Wit shares (Note 27) - - - - - - 84,139 84,139
GEER Translation surplus
DY arising from translation
£ of financial statements
fig4s of operations outside
EdEH Hong Kong - - - 192 - = - 192
ik Realised on disposal of
2] subsidiares - - - 1931 - - - 1931
ABHEAEE Net profit for the period - - - = = S /£ R 1T
Lok Transfer to reserves - - - - - 440 (4,402) -
RZZZ-EFZA=F—H  At31st December, 2001 420,633 918 - (3,639) 1,799 4402 (522,939) (98,801)
W kR Arising from capital reduction
Rk of ordinary shares
(Wit (Note 27) - - 182,348 - - - - 182,348
HI R it Arising from reduction
Eh of share premium (420,653) - 420,653 - - - - -
iEP T Setting off
[ accumulated losses - - (5898 - - - s -
fisigk Translation deficit arising
DR from translation of
£HEKA financial statements
M4 of operations outside
EfiEd Hong Kong - - - (16) - - - (16)
KEREATR Net profit for the year = = = = = = 45,082 45082
AR Transfer from reserves - - - - - (4.402) 4402 -
A ZRFETZAZ4-H Ac31st December, 2000 - 918 44,08 (3654 1,199 - B3 1861
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HE-_TT_F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

29. f# & (%) 29. RESERVES (Continued)

R Rx g E2iiEd
BEE BEHBE EHER EXEE SRR e (F4) 48
Share Capital Accumulated
premium  redemption  Contributed  Translation Merger Other profit
account reserve surplus reserve reserve reserves (deficit) Total
BEFE EWTr BEFx EETx BETx BETR BETx EETx
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
i Attributable to:
LI The Company and
&HEAT subsidiaries 420453 918 - (3.639) 1799 - (512.3%) (92.664)
FaAw Associate - - - - - - (18899 (18899
R Jointly controlled
il eatity = - = - - 4402 §.360 12,762
BEZE-FFZH=F—H At3lst December, 2001 420,653 918 - (3.,638) 1,799 4402 (522,933) (98.,801)
LI The Company and
EHEAT subsidiaries - 918 44203 (3.654) 1799 = 10446 147512
Fadd Associates - - - - - - (18899 (18899
REZEZEFZA=T—H At lst December, 2002 - 918 4403 (3.654) 1799 - 85,341 128613
K2R THE COMPANY
RoEZ-FEA-H At Ist April, 2001 420,653 918 30,382 - - - (643,330) (171,377)
A EER Arising from capital
hakEE reduction of ordinary shares
(W) (Note 27) - - - - - - 84,139 84,139
AHEHEE Net profit for the period - - - - - - 3418 3418
REFF-FF2A=F—0 A 3lst December, 2001 420653 918 50382 = = N NIK)] (83.820)
REE AR Arising from capital reduction
RakES of ordinary shares
(Kit27) (Note 27) - - 182,348 - - - - 182,348
I B Arising from reduction
B of share premium (420,653) - 420,653 - - - - -
b Setting off accumulated
1 Josses - - (55 - - = 558,798 =
EEHATR Net profit for the year - - - - - = 19,155 19,155
RZEZEFZA=4-H At3lst December, 2002 = 91§ 04 565 - - = 2,180 117,683
ZZZ_F 5, ANNUAL REPORT 2002 L BB AR Rt % % 203 SHANGHAI ALLIED CEMENT LIMITED




Bt 7% 3R &R MY 5% (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
TZE_F+-A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

29. & (&) 29. RESERVES (Continued)

A AL H 2 A BF R S A SR T R
J& 2% ) E B M8 o~ R A T (E S
Aoy )R U A BT 8 AT AR & o AR
B 2 A T E 2 B e

AN R 2 E B R R

(a) All Gold Investments Limited 5 H:
[ RN /N e A = I
Z A ROE 4 B A )R 9
AR BT B AT IR (E 2 2 B
5 50,382,0007C ( . & & — 4F ¢
% ¥ 50,382,000) ; K& o

(b) HI W C B AT A I K 85 A A F)
w1l 1R 2 B 0y s 1 TR AR 2
ik 17 % 9% W 44,203,0000C (-
F—F ) o

i e

pij

W

A

WEEFE - LN —FELRE (B
RIA) o AT ZH SR T
IR o SR o i B R S L AR
2 R RS R A B E R SR A
e B AR R

(a) A2 A B SR A 012 B (E
=B R R

(b) AT EE & B H
R R R BT A
e 1y i 1E MR 2 A o

%7 & ‘2> 2 SHANGHAI ALLIED CEMENT LIMITED

The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal amount of the share capital of the
subsidiaries at the date on which they were acquired by the
Group and the nominal amount of the share capital issued
by the Company as consideration for the acquisition under

the reorganisation.

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the

aggregate of:

(a) the difference between the consolidated shareholders’
funds of All Gold Investments Limited and its
subsidiaries at the date on which the corporate
reorganisation became effective and the nominal
amount of the Company’s shares issued under the
reorganisation of HK$50,382,000 (2001:
HK$50,382,000); and

(b) a net balance of HK$44,203,000 (2001: nil) arising
from reduction of issued share capital and share
premium after setting off accumulated losses of the

Company.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay
a dividend or make a distribution out of contributed surplus
if:

(a) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its

liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less
than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share

capital and share premium accounts.
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Bt 7% 3R &R MY 5% (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_TT_F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

29. f# & (&) 29. RESERVES (Continued)

KRB+ _A=+—H %
2 7 T A 5 R T K 2 B

At 31st December, 2002, the Company’s reserves available

for distribution to shareholders are as follows:

R TV

HK$°000

R &R Contributed surplus 94,585
S FH i A Accumulated profit 22,180
116,765

RoEE—FFASE &
23 7 3 9 6 4 T Ot 0 OR T ROK -

oAt ol e B B 2 g K R 2 A
EhEEBERES - MIHEESTIH
ERRECEZEEEE - HAEN
Bl 1R R o AT R BR R L
TRAEEA AT E 2 o 3
Wi Je s )y MAR IR R % - I W] 12
EAMMEZEU T AIERMEAR -
BHE_ZZ_HF+_HA=+—H1L
FEEAN . M E SR RS
A o

LR DN vl ) AR
i A ME B Ok B ZH 5 B b 75 B B
HEE o DL K ZH BT S BB A A fE
7 e B K fR B OO BE e

“ZZ - HF 53 ANNUAL REPORT 2002

At 31st December 2001, the Company had no reserves

available for distribution to shareholders.

Other reserves are attributable to reserve fund and enterprise
expansion fund of Shanghai SAC. The reserve fund is to be
used to expand the enterprise’s working capital. When the
enterprise suffers losses, the reserve fund may be used to
make up unrecovered losses under special circumstances.
The enterprise expansion fund is to be used for business
expansion and, if approved, can also be used to increase
capital. During the year ended 31st December, 2002, the

reserve fund was transferred to accumulated profits.

The remittance of accumulated profits of the subsidiaries
established in the Mainland China outside the Mainland
China is subject to approval of the local authorities and the
availability of foreign currencies generated and retained by

these subsidiaries.
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Bt 7% 3R &R MY 5% (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
HE_ZTZT_F+-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

30. iE & #i | 30. DEFERRED TAXATION

AEE
THE GROUP

—2E-F = i
2002 2001
BE TR T T
HK$°000 HK$°000

W0 4 Balance at beginning of the
year/period - =

R N | Consolidation of a former

A2 il 4 jointly controlled entity 1,120 -
BN B Charge for the year/period 1,087 -
CYE it 3 Balance at end of the year/period 2,207 -

R BEBS h R 2R IE B
TE fist J& 7 o R B TR i
A ERBUEE H A M
BHRMB g 2=
o

Deferred taxation accounted for in the financial statements is attributable
to excess of depreciation allowances claimed for tax purpose over

depreciation charged in the financial statements.

AR I R A
M 2 ¥ 76 IR 5E BLH & &

At the balance sheet date, the net potential deferred tax asset in respect

of timing differences which have not been recognised is analysed as

TFEXABREZZWN T follows:
%8 27
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
“EE-F %% ZEEZE  ZZ%-f
2002 2001 2002 2001
BET R BHT BYET T T
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BELHEYE Tax effect of timing
FE differences attributable to:
ABMBEEH Unutilised tax losses 19,402 27210 18,413 17,341
BT E v Difference between
hELHER depreciation allowances
b HHRE claimed for tax purpose
k2 and depreciation charged
£ in the financial statements 9) (17) - -
19,393 27,193 18,413 17,341
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Bt 7% 3R &R MY 5% (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

30. EIEEMIE ()
H 7 T BE 2 T A R 4
BLIH & B 2 B R B
A E LA o 5 BB
WO B A % H G 2
(ERINE 7 -

W S A (0
BR) W ak R 2 ¥ A5 IR I
BLH WA () 1F e

ZZTFF+ZA=FT—HLEFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

30. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

The net potential deferred tax asset has not been recognised in the

financial statements as it is not certain that the asset will be realised in

the foreseeable future.

The net potential deferred tax credit (charge) arising during the year/

period, which has not been recognised in the income statement, is as

follows:

rEHE
THE GROUP
—EE-F —EE-F
—A—H=Z mA—-—HZE
—EREZH —EE-F
+t=ZAR=+-B| t=ZB=t+—H
1.1.2002 1.4.2001
to to
31.12.2002 31.12.2001
BE TR T T
HK$°000 HK$’000
I 22 2 BB Tax effect of timing differences
YRR attributable to:
i f 48 Tax loss arising 1,474 2,178
AR BL H 2 Shortfall of depreciation
8 BB allowances claimed for tax
S ER R purpose over depreciation
Mk 2 P85 charged in the financial
ZER statements 8 2
A& AR K& Subsidiaries deconsolidated and
o & 2 [ g A FE disposed of (9,282) (26,548)
(7,800) (24,368)

ZZZ_F 5, ANNUAL REPORT 2002 LB A R AL 1) A R E)
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Bt 7% 3R &R MY 5% (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

1. ZREFTERMHAREZE

R X

B RE BT AR o F i K
RE-FF_HF=A+
WHEDRAAELEEZ
o= /N N e oy R
Rz EERAMRZ
MBI M

ZETFFZA=F+—HBLEFE Forthe year ended 31st December, 2002

. CONSOLIDATION OF A FORMER JOINTLY CONTROLLED

ENTITY

As described in note 1, Shanghai SAC has become a subsidiary of the
Group since 14th March, 2002. The effect of consolidation of the assets

and liabilities of Shanghai SAC is summarised below:

T T
HK$°000
BETEZEERE NET ASSETS CONSOLIDATED
Y - R B R A Property, plant and equipment 285,289
FEEYE Properties held for sale 7,872
7k Inventories 22,640
B 5y R H At E i 3k E Trade and other receivables 164,863
& KT AT BOR Deposits and prepayments 293
WAITH T KBl & Bank balances and cash 8,863
B Ty T I A JRE A 5 IE B 4% 4 Trade and other payables and deposits (39,939)
JRE A5F IR 28 > ) 3 H Amounts due to related companies (21,976)
JRE AT 7 S0 B BRI Amount due to minority shareholder (11,766)
B A R Tax liabilities (1,197)
SRAT Bank borrowings (126,937)
i 4L Fi IR Deferred taxation (1,120)
286,885
W BT E D BB HORE £ KH Less: amount attributable to minority interests (114,754)
55 JB A~ B2 B I 4w 9 1 i A Amount attributable to the Group and previously
e R 2 o % s E 4 2 KRR classified as interest in a jointly controlled entity 172,131
HAFTE EEKRELEZ Net cash inflow arising from consolidation of
B A Shanghai SAC
CHEAGFACRITHEF RS

L BB 44 2 AX (9 7 (& > 3 SHANGHAI ALLIED CEMENT LIMITED

Bank balances and cash consolidated 8,863
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Bt 7% 3R &R MY 5% (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

32.

ZZTFF+ZA=FT—HLEFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

WEEMH B LD A
BHE_FF-F+A
=+—HIL@EARN
A% £E 3] Y B ATI-Shanghai
Inc. Z 83.3% M 25 » {15
# M 250,000,0007C °

32. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

During the nine months ended 31st December, 2001, the Group acquired

a 83.3% interest in AIl-Shanghai Inc. for a consideration of

HK$250,000,000.

BT T
HK$°000
FFRBEERE NET ASSETS ACQUIRED
i A e ] 2 1 4% 2 A Interest in a jointly controlled entity 164,785
B i 2t (W] 2 44 2 MR S Dividend receivable from jointly controlled entity 11,215
JRE i HiT B 4 R W ROE Amount due from former immediate holding company 4,812
B i 3t (7] 42 1 4% o OE Amount due from a jointly controlled entity 6,887
WAT &5 A7 Bank balances 6
JRE AT i 3K S e 5t % H Accounts payable and accrued charges (31)
187,674
o D R TR AL AR Less: amount attributable to minority interests (31,285)
i e i A Net assets acquired 156,389
AEAIRERFE A Z MR Goodwill on consolidation 93,611
250,000
UT5 A8 SATISFIED BY:
AT A Issue of shares 250,000
i 6 i E A 2 B T NI Net cash inflow arising from acquisition
il i B SR AT 45 A7 Bank balances acquired 6
1 4 BT o B RS > R I The subsidiary acquired during the period did not have significant
o AREEZ EERK contributions to the Group’s turnover and profit from operations.

A8 7 i A AR R R

WA B i e L R 2 R A
BREE _TE—4F+
“H=+—H1JuE A
Fh A AR T A A U ) U i
12,760,0007C » {H ilf & 7%
AKEHZEEELH &
Fi o S - NI = =

The jointly controlled entity acquired during the period contributed
HK$12,760,000 to the Group’s profit for the nine months ended 31st

December, 2001.

“ZZ - HF 53 ANNUAL REPORT 2002
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Bt 7% 3R &R MY 5% (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
HE_ZTZT_F+-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

33. THiHEETTEME AR 33. DECONSOLIDATION OF SUBSIDIARIES

— —Z2T-F
2002 2001
BE TR T T
HK$°000 HK$°000
N2 A Net liabilities excluded:
B 5 B I Ab Trade and other payables
JRE A5 3K JH and deposits (27,838) (61,121)
AEEGEFANE Gain on deconsolidation
S PALE of subsidiaries (27,838) (61,121)
A ARG R SE AT E AR Net cash outflow arising
2B & A on deconsolidation:
2 BT & Bank balances and cash
& disposed of - =
FOMANABE SRR The subsidiaries deconsolidated during the year/period do not have
E Sl () PN significant contributions to the Group’s turnover and profit from
AR EERMLKLE operations.

el AP NI= Y
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Bt 7% 3R &R MY 5% (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

34.

S5k

ME XX+ H
=1t —H1JuE A K H
(a7 /NN A
LEZEEERRE R
K S N =

FEFRERS
BE_ZFEZ -+ A
=+t—HIEMHAR
A 42 T AR PR B RS AL T
VAETEREHRERZS
PR A A
27(b) °

BE_ZER 4+ A
=+—HILEERN > K
EHRE G EH A
Wy 2 ¥ %5 3,280,0000C (—
FTE—FENAH—HEZ
FTE-FETZH=1—
) DREBB &

o

A

fE m
it

35.

ZZTFFZA=Z1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002
HEWEB A A 34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
—EE-F
2001
T T
HKS$’000
HEFAME: Net liabilities disposed of:
At 8 i 3% 0H Other receivables
SRAT &5 A7 e B4 Bank balances and cash
B Gy T oAt A Trade and other payables
AIH A% & and deposits (1,839)
(1,833)
B I MR B 2 BE 0 £k £ Translation reserve released upon disposal 1,931
W W A ) IR (B AE9) Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (note 9) 98
B T E AR B A R Net cash outflow arising on disposal:
W ZRAT A R B Bank balances and cash disposed of (2)

The subsidiaries disposed of during the nine months ended 31st December,
2001 did not have significant contributions to the Group’s turnover and

profit from operations.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the nine months ended 31st December, 2001, the Group entered
into certain material non-cash transactions pursuant to the financial

restructuring, as described in note 27(b).

During the year ended 31st December, 2002, the Group received properties
of HK$3,280,000 (1,4,2001 to 31,12,2001: nil) from trade debtors in lieu

of cash settlement.
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s il

HE-ZZT-_F+-A=1T—HILEFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

By RO

36. & Kk & A 5t &

V&

BE_FFFEFE+-H=1+H &
EEAEBEETHBELR ZHA S
H SR B oL E B A R B (T8 R
) o EEH 2 EERAEEEE
il ESE IR AV N Y e
Fr A o A 4R B axwt 3 4% A B ¥
BAAE 5% E o TR B O 1 AR
REstzfx - R_FF -4+
“A=Zt—H W ENEBRAHES
T8 A ARSI AT R R A B
A AT B 2 ORI i K e

HoFEFET A AR AR
1 40 % Bk 34 8 O B % B O BOA
B 2 B 4 a8 -

A G 2 B R B Y B E AR
B 7 R AR AR A A E 2 A -
A 45 M 2 1) w% R K AR AL R 9% B B
ZH e A EEE O ke
A 45 B Rt W% B K AR A Gl 2 R 9
iy AE R R e

%7 & ‘2> 2 SHANGHAI ALLIED CEMENT LIMITED

36. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operated a defined contribution scheme (the “Old
Retirement Scheme”) for all qualifying employees of certain
of its subsidiaries in Hong Kong up to 30th November,
2000. The assets of the Old Retirement Scheme were held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of trustees. The Group contributed 5% of relevant
payroll costs to the Scheme, which contribution was
matched by employees. There were no significant forfeited
contributions, which arose upon employees leaving the Old
Retirement Scheme and which were available to reduce the
contributions payable in the future years at 31st December,
2001.

Starting from 1st December, 2000, the Group operates a
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for all employees in

Hong Kong.

The PRC employees of the Group are members of a state-
managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the local
government. The Group is required to contribute a specified
percentage of their payroll costs to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to

make the specified contributions.
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ZZTFF+ZA=FT—HLEFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

37. L&Y R E

REZFF—-FNA > F
4 T B b OK B B =
HT 7 Tih e AL HG K U AR
B A=t
R4 B B% o B R PR 2R =
H RIS Z M TR ek o A
EHAEER _FF =4
N H B H AR B WA A A
1k b AH & o B A 4R
7 de AR AR RZ A A e

MFEREZF T H=
T—H > AEMRE L
a2 PR ZE S A 2 4
EAE WM T

37. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

In June, 2001, the Group entered into an arrangement with a third party
in Mainland China to lease its production facilities for manufacture of
cement with a term of twenty years. Under a supplemental agreement
with the third party in Mainland China, the Group has an option to
terminate the said lease in June 2003 and each of two years after June

2003. The Group has no current intention to terminate the lease.

Under the above arrangement, at 31st December, 2002, the Group had
commitments to pay rental expenses which fall due as follows:

AEE N
THE GROUP THE COMPANY

“ERRCF | Z%%F-F | CERIF| ZFT-F

2002 2001 2002 2001

BETT ERT T BETT EHT I

HKS$’000 HK$'000 HEK$'000 HK$'000

—ER Not later than one year 1,990 3,571 - =

B Later than one year and not later

BAHREE than five years 504 1,572 - =

2,494 5,149 - -
b RYE TR AR LA The above commitment represents rental payments up to the end of the
RE & 11 FH £ HA T 1 79 4F first two-year period where such option to terminate the lease may be

M4 o B AR
WM (EHEE R WA il
& A% A AR T E SO s
470,0007C ° M 5 S 4
oo A B B
Mo 3k — Bim [ 2 A s o

exercised by the Group. From the second year to the fifth year inclusive,
the rental will be escalated by a fixed amount of HK$470,000 per annum.
Starting from the sixth year onwards, the rental is fixed at the same term
as that of the fifth year.
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HE_ZTZT_F+-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

38. & K& IE 38. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
BEEEH > KEH A At the balance sheet date, the Group and the Company had no significant
75 ) W 4 AT ] EOK & A capital commitment.
2
39. A EE 39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
¥ L
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
“3%2F | ZFF-F | ZRE2E | ZE%F
2002 2001 2002 2001
B¥Tn EH T E¥Tn BT
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BULT 2T i & Guarantees given to banks and
B BRI LER - financial institutions in respect of:
EPAAASAGE Banking facilites utilised by
WEAR Subsidiaries - - 216 1,080
RANEAT Fellow subsidiaries 56,604 - - =
EEYi Third parties 2,169 = - =
REZEZHH Bills of exchange discounted
% with recourse 3,51 - - -
114,350 - 16 1,080
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HE-_TT_F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

40 EEEALETRS 40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

HE_FF-"F+_HA=+—HI
AERE N AN S ) A R B K B R
ZHEAR (T KREZEE]) 2 &FT
i P A A T 5 AR > TR % 4R R
BNl N N Y P S
BEYE LR o A B A Al A] H S R A & AR
B2 %W BUAE B 1% B R E o b
ZERETHELH A AR EH
VBt S EAE (R PERT L B ek o R
—ERECHE+LH=Z+—H > L
K e By R 2SR B 2 A R R
# ¥ 56,600,000 (- FF —4F @ i
# 42,000,0007C) 2 ¥ 4 > K %4
Ll I ol O I S = I
# ¥ 38,900,00000 (= & & —4F ¢ i
#& 73,000,00070) 2 ¥ f# o LK IR
] K Z¢ 45 T i B i M 354,00000 (-
T —4ENH —HE R4+
“HA=+—H8 ) ZEMRE W
R 22 AR ] 1) E 3 7K U8 i B0 561,000
L(ZEE—FMH—-HE_FZX
—4#+"H=+—H8 : ) ZEMH
#H o

W= AEE+H+~NHE - £iE
KUE B R A K U 40% 0 35 2 b
KU W (T & v K Y2 Wl ) w1 o F
# oo WMIEMA > L KIREEER
g K VR R SZ A R R R R 2 H
R EE (1) B o B E M #E (F
WIFHMAOMAZYE - BRFE KL H
2 I8 B IMA10%% EREH) 5 &
(2) & (EERETHE R
G B A R OB E 2 R R R K&
ARERZBEHEE) - E _F
FoFEFF A=+ —HIEFERN
KU S AT 2 O AR R B W
3,647,000C (=X EX—4FMWH—H =
SEE—E+ A=+ —H ) o
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During the year ended 31st December, 2002, the Group
provided guarantees to secure certain borrowings of
subsidiaries of Tian An (“Tian An Group”) in Mainland
China and Tian An Group provided guarantees to secure
certain borrowings of the Group in Mainland China. A
guarantee fee of 1% per annum on the principal amount of
the guarantees was chargeable between the relevant parties.
In July 2002, the Company entered into a master agreement
with Tian An for such reciprocal arrangement of guarantee.
At 31st December, 2002, Shanghai SAC provided guarantees
of HK$56,600,000 (2001: HK$42,000,000) to secure
borrowings of Tian An Group in the PRC and Tian An Group
provided guarantees of HK$38,900,000 (2001:
HK$73,000,000) to secure borrowings of Shanghai SAC in
the PRC. Shanghai SAC charged guarantee fees of
HK$354,000 (1.4.2001 to 31.12.2001: nil) to Tian An Group
and Tian An Group charged guarantee fees of HK$561,000
(1.4.2001 to 31.12.2001: nil) to Shanghai SAC.

On 16th December, 1995, a leasing agreement was entered
into between Shanghai SAC and Shanghai Cement Factory
(“SCF”), which holds a 40% interest in Shanghai SAC.
According to the leasing agreement, Shanghai SAC shall
pay to SCF an annual leasing fee which consists of (1) a
fixed asset leasing fee mainly based on the depreciation of
the property, plant and equipment leased under the leasing
agreement plus a mark-up of about 10%; and (2) a usage
fee mainly based on the volume of raw materials off-load
and the applicable unit rate for the relevant raw materials
agreed by the parties when the leasing agreement was
signed. During the year ended 31st December, 2002,
Shanghai SAC, since it became a subsidiary of the
Company, paid a total leasing fee of HK$3,647,000
(1.4.2001 to 31.12.2001: nil).
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BE_TZT_F+_-_A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

it

s

40. ERAEALR S (8
BN A SR Y

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

During the year/period, the Group has entered into other related party

T2 HMEE L Z N - transactions as follows:
—FE=F —FF-F
—A—HZ mA—-—HZ
=3 —E2-F
+t=A=+-B| +=Z=HR=+-8
1.1.2002 1.4.2001
to to
31.12.2002 31.12.2001
BET T T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BREER DA Ultimate holding company
WAEMEH I Office rental expenses, repairs
B R AE and maintenance 1,072 620
& Z M /& A &) Fellow subsidiaries
TR % & i A Guarantee fee income 270 =
E AR A Guarantee fee paid 408 =
1[5 42 ) 48 Jointly controlled entities
S B K U8 K BB Sales of cement and clinker 4,925 9,939
K 2 Purchase of cement - 161
I ' Purchase of ceramic titles 1,571 -
& 5y R HoAth I i 3k Trade and other receivables - 2,085
B 5 o oAl e A 3K Trade and other payables - 584
BEEARRABRE Companies which have significant
ERABEKR beneficial interests in the
ERERZAT Company’s ultimate holding
company
(R A - Rental expenses, air conditioning
HEB RARE charges, repairs and maintenance 388 108
i B A Staff costs - 250
BUYFHBTEEA A lawyers’ firm in which an
BINANZEETT independent non-executive
director is a partner
BEREREELR Legal and professional fees 259 162
BY AT A firm of certified public
S accountants in which an
AIA independent non-executive
ZH director is a partner
& G AT 2 Professional fees 180 100
L BB als 2 R (9 7 [ 20 @ SHANGHAI ALLIED CEMENT LIMITED “Z T _FF % ANNUAL REPORT 2002
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HE-_TT_F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

40. BEBEEALTR S (5)

41.

BN o KU ) A 4R 2 B
KE s A 2 — [ BB A R A
¥ 5890000 (B E — 4 H —
HE -FFX -+ _H=+—H:
W M 692,00000) 2 B HEE A -

bt 52 5y Ty 1% A B T A 07 W e 2
KAHEAT -

BLAT BN R &5 B 2 H A &5 R
WE O AR A E R AR R a7
18

TEMBLAA ZHE
B EEZFEF A=+ —H &
NEZ EEME A RSN

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

41.

During the year/period, Shanghai SAC paid management
fee of HK$589,000 (1.4.2001 to 31.12.2001: HK$692,000)

to a subsidiary of the Company’s ultimate holding company.

The above transactions were carried out at terms agreed

between the relevant parties.

Details of other balances with related parties at the balance
sheet date are set out in the consolidated balance sheet and

in notes 17 and 18.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st

December, 2002 are as follows:

EBATR KRR
gmEY/ BER®B/ ERTRG/
WEBLRER TR E HfhE X dAMERABESL TEEH
Proportion of
issued share capital/
Place of Issued and fully registered
incorporation/ paid share capital/ capital held
Name of subsidiary registration registered capital by the Company Principal activities
E# M #&
Directly Indirectly
% %
All-cement Limited PR LR T M1 e 100 -  REER
British Virgin Ordinary Investment holding
Islands US$1
All-Shanghai Inc. KR LR 98 K 83.3 - & 7K
British Virgin 15,376,500 J© Investment holding
Islands Ordinary
US$15,376,500
Interform Building R R LR T8 M 100 6 100 - BOH M

Material Supplies British Virgin

Limited Islands

EETEFYY

ANNUAL REPORT 2002

Ordinary
US$100

Trading of building

materials

LB ARt TR e )
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HE_ZTZT_F+-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

M. TEMBARAZFERE 41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(%) (Continued)
BRTRK pNUN B
HMmAx/ BERH/ BETRH,/
MEQEER i 8 ZME R AMEABILE ETEEXK

Proportion of
issued share capital/

Place of Issued and fully registered
incorporation/ paid share capital/ capital held
Name of subsidiary registration registered capital by the Company Principal activities
B# A &
Directly Indirectly
% %
Interform Construction i W 2% oo 100 = B&E R
Supplies Limited British Virgin Ordinary HEEM
Islands US$2 Investment holding
and trading of building
materials
Interform Strategic B R B S & 2% ot 100 - gL
Holdings Limited British Virgin Ordinary Investment holding
Islands US$2
SAC Engineering WG IE LR & 4 it 50,0005 7t 100 - ® B %K
Limited British Virgin Ordinary Investment holding
Islands US$50,000
IHIBRARAA it o8 B 1007T — 100 HEEH
SAC Engineering Company Hong Kong Ordinary Trading of building
Limited HK$100 materials
SAC Enterprises Limited %k o kv # 1,0000 100 = BB A
Hong Kong Ordinary 1 R B
HK$1,000 Provision of
management
services to group
companies
BB R 7 i & % % 1007 — 100  AEEALF
AR Hong Kong Ordinary 12 1t B % IR B
SAC Finance Company Limited HK$100 Provision of financing

services to group

companies

L BB 44 2 AX (9 7 (& > 3 SHANGHAI ALLIED CEMENT LIMITED —ZE—Z &% ANNUAL REPORT 2002
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1. EZENMBLARA2HE

HE-_TT_F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December, 2002

41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(%) (Continued)
BBETR b 3
AmKYL/ BRBRHB/ BRTRA/
MEARER TRt dME R AMEAEAIL FEEE
Proportion of
issued share capital/
Place of Issued and fully registered
incorporation/ paid share capital/ capital held
Name of subsidiary registration registered capital by the Company Principal activities
BE# M #&
Directly Indirectly
% %
1y 3R - WK R B K B GRUB-WN — 100 B R 8K R
HRA R Mainland 1,000,000 7t LR
Shandong Shanghai Allied China Registered capital Manufacture and
Cement Co., Ltd. US$1,000,000 distribution of cement
and clinker
i Bk e hE KB GE & A 24,000,000% T - 60 R KK
AR A Mainland Registered capital B2 K
Shanghai Allied Cement China US$24,000,000 Manufacture and
Co., Ltd. distribution of cement
and clinker
O 9 T 25 IR T mE KR G E A AR W 750,0007 - - BHEEM
FRAA Mainland Registered capital Trading of building
([EE]) (Kat) China RMB750,000 materials

(“TRIWA”) (Note)

AN B R B HE 2GR R O M R A
Eﬁ%é%ﬁ T &% 23 @) Bl f = 4
NLHER - RIFhEE - BEZH
ANBEAEBMAT L2 % T Wk - B
WA N R R AR ] &
EhMbhEFEERGEMEF R
Ji o LA R W] B A HE BB KRR B
RZHES - Wt BEHHAEAL
A9 FARCTIRIN TS S 9
BRAGEGFAARERZ EH
BELAM BEZGEMBA LA
EEHE -

EFXRABRAEER S ETEREBAL
B AR AE BT S A BN B A 4R O AR 1
HERABZARNAWMNE AT - #
RS mﬁﬂE%WEAﬁZ#
HEEHERBMHILE -

& > A

22

FERH
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The Company does not have any beneficial interest in the
registered capital of TRIWA as it is owned by three
individuals. Pursuant to certain agreements entered into
among TRIWA, the owners of TRIWA and the Group, the
owners of TRIWA agreed to assign the power to appoint
and remove all the members of the board of directors of
and to govern the financial and operating policies of TRIWA
to the Group. Accordingly, TRIWA is treated as a subsidiary
of the Company and its results, assets and liabilities are
consolidated with those of the Group. The registered capital
of TRIWA was contributed by the Group.

The above list includes the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affect
the results of the Group for the year or form a substantial
portion of the assets and liabilities of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

B R VA C N AN
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